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IN DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Sahajanand Medical Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Sahajanand Medical
Technologies Limited (the "Parent Company") and its subsidiaries (the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as the "Group"), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 3t,2025,
and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that
date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "Consolidated Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations glven to us and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on financial statements of the subsidiaries referred to in
the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended ('Ind AS'), and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025,
and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows
and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter
paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Parent's Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Director's Report including the Annexures thereto, but does
not include the Consolidated Financial Statements, Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's reports
thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries audited by the other
auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other
auditors and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated
Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
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be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiaries, is traced from their
financial statements audited by the other auditors.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repoft in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India including Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the
Parent Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group, are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intend to liquidate their
respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

e<
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's repoft. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within
the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company and such other entities included
in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other uaiter

We did not audit the financial statements of 7 subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total assets
of Rs. 35,437.6L lakhs as at March 3t,2025, total revenues of Rs. 43,526.5t lakhs and net cash inflows
amounting to Rs. 977.29lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements above, is not modified in respect of the above
matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Ge-
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent Company as on March
31,2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company, none of the directors of the
Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 3L, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure
A" which is based on the auditors' reports of the Parent Company and subsidiary company incorporated
in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of those companies.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent Company
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section L97 of the Act other than
managerial remuneration paid / payable to the Executive Director amounting to Rs. 574.5L lakhs for the
year which is subject to approval of the shareholders that the Company proposes to obtain in the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Our opinion is not modified in respect to this matter.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements

(ii) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

(iii)There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Parent Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India.

(iv) (a) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiary which are companies
incorporated in India, Whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 40 (i) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Parent or
any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent or any of such subsidiaries ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.
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(b) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiary which are companies incorporated
in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in Note 40 (ii) to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, no funds have been received by the Parent or any of such subsidiaries from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Parent or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
nothing has come to our or other auditor's notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Parent and its subsidiary which is a company incorporated in India, whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act, have not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has
not proposed final dividend for the year.

(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Parent Company and its subsidiary
company incorporated in India have used accounting software for maintaining their respective
books of account using accounting software for the financial year ended March 31,2025 which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software(s). Further, during the course of audit,
we have not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit
trail has been preserved by the Parent Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India
as per the statutory requirements for record retention,

(i) With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report)

Order, 2020 (the "Order]'CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given to
us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and its subsidiary company
incorporated in India included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company, we repoft
that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports, except for the following:

Name of the Company
Nature of

Relationship

Clause Number of the CARO
report with qualification or

adverse remark
Sahajanand Medical
Technologies Limited

u33 I 19GJ2001 PLC040 121 Pa rent Clause (i) (c), Clause (ii) (b)

Firm's Registration

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

100018)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2025

Terence Lewis
(Partner)

(Membership No. 107502)
(UDIN : 25 1075028M1BDB4244)
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under'Report on Other Lega! and Regulatory Requirements'section
of our report Sahajanand Medical Technologies Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2O13 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended March 3L,2025, we have audited the internalfinancial controls with reference to consolidated financial
of Sahajanand Medical Technologies Limited (hereinafter referred to as "Parent Company") and its
subsidiary company, which is incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financia! Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary company, which is incorporated in India,
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chaftered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibil ity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Parent and its subsidiary company which is incorporated in India, based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based. on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by another auditor of a
subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, in terms of their report referred to in the Other
Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Parent and its subsidiary
company, which is incorporated in India.

?,L
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Meaning of Interna! Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inh'erent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations glven to us, the Parent and
its subsidiary company, which is incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 3L,2025, based on the
criteria for internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements established by the
respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.

Terence Lewis
(Partner)

(Membership No. 107502)
(U DIN : 25 1075028M18D84244)
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Sahairrard Medical Tcchnologies l,iorited
C'onsolidated Balance Sheet as at 3l lUtrrch,2025 (Rs, in lilcs)

Particulars Note No. As fll 3l i\'lnrch,2025 As rt 3l Mrrch,202.l

ASSETS

I Non-Currcnt Assets

(a)

(b)

(")
(d)
(e)

(0
(g)

(h)
(i)

c)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Right oftjse Assets

Capital Work-in-Progress
Goodwill
Other Intangible Assels

lntangible assets under developn)ent
Financial Assets

(i) Loans

(ii) Other Financial Assets

lncome Tax Assets (net)
Deferred Tax Assets (net)
Other Non-Current assets

Total Non-Current Assets

Current Assets

(a) Inventories
(b) FinaDcial Assets

(i) Investments
(ii)'fradeReceivables
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(iv) Other llank Balances
(v) l,oans
(ri) Other Financial Assets

(c) Other Current Assels
(d) Non-current assels held for salc
Total Clrrent Asscts

Total Assets

I)QUI'I'Y AND LIABILITII]S
Equily
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other cqutty
Equity attribtrtable to owncrs of the (lompany
(c) NoD-conlrollinginlerest
Total Equitv
Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial I-iabilities

(i) Borrou,ings
(ii) Lease Liabilities
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) I'}rovisions
(c) Delerred Tax l,iabilities (net)

Totnl Non-Current Liabilities
Current Liabilitics
(a) finanoialt,iabilities

(i) Borrowirgs
(ii) Lease Liabilitics
(iii) l rade Payables

total oulslanding dues ofmicro entcrprises and sntall enicrPriscs
total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than rnicro enlerprises and snrall enterprises

(ir) Other Financial Liabilities
(b) Other Current Liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Currcnt Tax liabilities (net)

'l'otal Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

Terence

Partner

ChiefExecutive Officer

DIN :06575042

Place:Mumbai
Datet 29 May,2025

Wffi

s(A)
6(A)

1

E(A)

3(A)
3(B)

3(C)
3(D)
3(E)
3(F)

9

I
t0
ll
t2

s(B)
6(B)
8(B)

l3
t4

1 8,1 1 8.44

2,912.53

565.59

4.674 75

3,053 46

65 36

2,344.71

36.22

3,8 I 6.93

2,1t6.62

11,925.94

2,76t.69

t,344.30
4,573.65
4,318.-84

46.00
2,05t.57

52.t2
2, t91.91

2,091.50

38,693.88

26,(,85. I 5

492.30
26,341.63
I 0,052.02

131.68

84.58

2t6.57
6,785.41

37,417.52

25,226.34

629.95

2t,516.83
7,166.80

186.17

87.69

404.33

4,42t.85

70.795.36 59,639,96

976 00 974.50
93

56,572.,1,1 5{,008.43
t5 I

ls(A)
l6(A)
16(C)
r 8(A)

7

r s(B)
l6(B)
t7

59,046,59

3,583.00
2,018.7 I

1,461.53

6t.6t
I 71.54

s6,63t,14

3,009.98
1,722.89

677.81

41.44

2'13.94
7,306.39

18,912.71

843.'12

t,6'12.60
I 1)\ 1t

6,266.n
t,802.46

14t.40

5,726,06

I 4,5 | 6.98

805.02

273.05
'1,941.00

4,435.19
1,330.93

il263

r6(r))
l9

r 8(B)

4,172.02 5.28.1 88

43,136,26 3.1.699.68
50,4,12.65 .10,.125.7{

1,09,.189.2,1 97,057.J8

t-46See accompanying notes forming part ofthe Consolidated Frnancial Statements

For Deloitte I{askius & Sells LLP Iior aild on behnlf of the IJolrrd ol Dircctors
Sahajanand Medical'fechnolrgies l,rmitedChartered Accountants

Irirrn's gdistrjtiy'n number: I 17366W/W - l000tB

Mernbership Numbet - 101502

I)lace:Mumbai
Date:29 May,2025

DIN : 07983480

Place:Mumbai
Date: 29 May,2025

ChiefFinancial Officer

Place:Mumbai
Date: 29 May , 2025

Company Secretary and

Compliance Oflicer

Place:Mumbai
Date: 29 May,2025
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Saha.ianand Medical Technologics Linited
(lonsolidatcd Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3l March, 2025

particulars For the year endcd
Note No. 3l March,2025

I,irr thc \car endetl
3l March, 202-l

I lncome:

Revenue frorn operations
Other incorne
'Iotal lncome (l)

Expcnses:
Cost olmaterials consumed
Purchase of Stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-tradc and work-irrprogress
Employee benefi ts expense

F'inance costs

Depreciation and arrrortisation expense

0ther expcnses

Total expenses (ll)

Profit before exceptional items and tax (l - tl)

fixceptional Iterns

Profit beforc tax (llt-lv)

Vl Tax expensc:
Cuncnt tax oharge

Delbred tax (credit)

Tax rclated to earlier years

Total tax cxpense (VI)

Vll l'rofit/(loss) after tax (V-Vl)

VIII Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassificd subsequently to l)rofit or loss
Re{reasurement [,oss on defined bcnefit obligation
Incorne tax on above

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Ilxchange Gain on translation of financial statemcnts of loreign opcrltiols
'l'otal Other conrprehensivc Income (Vlll)

IX 'lbtal Comprchcnsivc Income for the year (VII+Vlll)

X (Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to:
Non-controlling interest

Owners ofthe Cornpany

Xl C)ther comprehensive income for the ycar attributable to:
Non-contr0lling interest
Owners ofthe Cornpany

Xll Tottl comprchensive income for thc ycar attributable to:
Non-controlling interest
Owners ofthe Cornpany

Xlll Earnings pcr share:
(Face Value Re. I per Share)

Basic (Rs.)

I)iluted (Rs.) 32

See accornpanying notes fbrrnirrts parl ofthe consolidrtcd Iirla,cial statsrncnts l-46

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

20

2l
1,02.4n7.92 90. r 60.36

698.98I , | 08.32

90,859.31

ll
22

23

24

25

26

27

2ti

2 I,843.93
5.145.63

( r,949.38)

29,226.06

2,0'13.19

6.253.43

35,4 I 9.44

98.012.J0 87.550.07

21.282.96
7 

'tgt 
i5

(3,997.7))

25,394.00

1.944. l 5

6.450.4,1

30.582.n9

29

III

IV

5,583.94 .3.J09.27

1.502.94

3, I 20.28

( 1,554.44)

(674.3s\
161.66

409.80

2,113.52

(957.33)

())') ) \\
55.38

7 t.'78

2,1t2.2',1 (830.47)

479.32

2,035.84

(26t.40)
I 58.5 I

217.92

2,194.35

2.09
2.01

541.14

(1,276.s4)

l 04.59
(199.66)

645.73

(t,476.20)

(r.31)
(r.31)

Chartered Accguntants
I'iun's reg(is1lf on ntunber: I I 7366W/W - 1000 | lt

l'erence Lewis

Partner

Meurbership Number - 107502

Place:Murnbai
Datet 29 May,2025

I,'or and on hehalf of thc lloard of l)irectors
Saha.ianand Medical l-cchnologics Linrjled

Chief Executive Offlcer
DIN : 06575042

Placc: Murnbai
Datc: 29 May. 2025

DIN : 07983480

Place : Murnbai
Date: 29 May, 2025

Plaoc:Murnbai
Date; 29 Vlay. 2025

Cornpanl, Secretary ancl
('ompliancc Olficer

Placc: lvlrurbai
I)atc; 29 May. 2025

Non-llxecutivol)irector Chiel'FinancialOlllcer
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Sahajanand Mcdical Technologies Limited
Consolidated Statenrent ofCash flows for theyear ended 3l I\,larch,2025

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars For the Year ended

3l March,2025
I,'or the Year ended
3l Mrrch,2024

A Cash flows frorn operating activitics
Profit before tax

ALlju,;tntent for..
Deprecialion artd amofl lsalron exl)cnsc
Financc costs

lnterest inconte

Professional fees for tecltnical and commercial diligence

Share based payment experlscs

Unrealised exchange (gain)/loss
(Protit)/Loss on sale ofpropefty, plant and equipment (net)

Gain on temination of Leasa

Bad debts

Impainnent of Financial Assets (net)

Provision no longer required written back
Operating cash flows before moyetrlcnt in working capital

Movenrents in working capital
Ad j il.\ t ilte t1 t.fir r (i n c t.ea.\c) de. rc ds c i n opc ftil i n g u s.\ c t t :

lnventories (iet of provisiorl)
-l 

rade Receivables and other assets

ALljustilrctt for itlcrease (lecrease) in opcr.ttiDg liobilitie.\:
'frade Payables and other liabilities

Cash generated fronr operating activitics
Net income tax paid

Nct cash generated fronl operating activities (A)

B Cash flows from invcsting activities
Payment for purchase of Propedy, Plant & E<piprrent, Capital Work-in-l)rogress. intangibles, an(l int.ntgible urlder
developnrent

Proceeds from sale ofproperty, plant and equipmcnt and Capital Work-rn-l)rogress
Loans given to third party/employees (net)

Bank deposits withdrawn/ (placed) (nct)
Rcdcrnption of debt securities (net)

lnterest received
Net cash used in investing activities (ll)

C Cash flows front financing activities
Proceeds from long-tenn borrowtngs
Repaynlent of long-tem borowings
Procceds of short-term bomowings (net)
Payment ol lease liabilities (principal)
Payrnent ol lease liabilities (intercst)

Dividend paid to Non-controlling interest shareholder in a subsidiary
Financcs costs paid

Professional fees for technical and commercial diligence
Net cash gencrated frou financing activities (C)

Net Increasc/(dccrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year
l-css Unrealised exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Reconciliation ofcash and cash equivalents
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalent as per Conso)idated Ilalance Sheet
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

See accompanying notes fomring pan ofthe Consolidated Financial Statenlcnts ( I -4a))

For Deloitte Haskins & Sclls LLP
Chartered AccountaDts

1,081.00

6,253.4i
2.013 t9
(32r 2e)

l, I 02.94

369 66

36 L85

I t0.68
(62.34)

295.25

(4e. I 2)
( 16.s2)

3409.27

6,450.44

1,944.15

(178.17)

t52.45

| 90.06

(16.48)

(4s.82)

56.50

1,608.93

(142.02\

l,t,l 98.73 .71

(1,428.93)
(5,966.22)

4,129.7 t

(4,802.67)
( r,850.43)

(665.68)

I 0,913.29

(i,581 l8)
6,009.93

( r ,1199.62)

7)52,t t {,1 10.31

26838 ItiI 8l
(4,893.72) ({,216.81 )

(4,899.66)

127.93

(280.09)

(241.e3)
137.65

(4,22'1.52)

296.82

(46.00)

(0.e6)

(4s0.e7)

(3,06; sr )
't ,233.16

( r,0r 8.20)

(14r.64)

( 1,694.63)

2,620.07
(2,6n3 30)

4,86i t5
(76s 7'7)

(17 t .42)
(367.08)

( I ,814.00)
(1.i02.94)

1,312.88

3,035.10

7, I 66.80
( r 49.88)

I,176.38
i q)l 50

66.83
10.052.02 7,1 66.80

I 0,052.02 7, I 6(1 80

10,052.02 7,1 66.80

F-irm's regi$tratpn number: I I 7366WAV - I OO0 l 8

Terence Lewis

Partner

Membership Number - \0'1502

Place : Mumbai
Date.29 May,2025

Iror and on behtlfof thc Ilotrd ol Directors
Sahajanand i\4edrctl lcchnologles [,rDlted

Chief Executive Officer

DIN : 06575042

Place : Mumbai
Date.29 May,2025

Non-Executive Director ChiefFinancial Officer Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer

DIN : 07981480

Place ; Mumbai

Date:29 May,2025
Place Mumbai

Date 29 May,2025
Place: Munrbai

Date: 29 May, 2025
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Sahajanaud Medical Tcchnologics Linritcd

Notcs to the Consolidatcd Financitl StateDreills for the year ended Jl NIilrch,2025

General Infornration

for the year ended 3 I March, 2025. '[he company was i ncorporated and dom ici I cd in I ndia durirg the ycar 200 I under the companjes Act, 20 I 3.

manufacturing planls in lndia and'Ihailand. l he Group sells the abovc products in lndia as well as outside lDdia

'Ihe Consolidated Financial Statements for thc ycar ended 31 March, 2025 wcrc approved by thc Board olDirectors and authorised lor issue on 29 May 2025.

Sunrmary of nraterial accouItiDg policies

a) Ilasis ofAccounting

with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) llules, 20 I 5, as amcnded, from lime to tinre

transfer a liability rn an orderly lransaction between market panioipants at lhe nleasurenreot dalc

nlonths for the purpose ofclassification ofits assets and liabililies as currenl and Don-current as sel out in Schcclulc III ofthc Act

b) PriuciplesofCoilsolidatioil
i) Subsidiaries

Accounting policies ofsubsidiarics have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policics adopted by the Group.

ofthe earnings, the attribution specilied by such ail.angenteni is considered

c) Use of Estinlates

upon manageDent's best knowledge ofcurrent evenls and actions, actual rcsulls could dift'er iiont thesc estinates

d) lnveiltories

goods to lheir present localion and condition Provision is made lor obsolete, slow rroving and delective stock, where necessary.
Net realizable value represents the estimated selling pricc fbr inventories less all estrmated costs ofcomplctron and costs necessar) b make the sale.

e) Revenue Recognitioil

other similar allowances. Revenue excludes indirect taxes which are collected on behalfofGoventment

are rccogniscd as revenue when lhe Group performs undcr the contract

4
o_\ _

w e.l 0l April,2023

xPrincipal place ofbusiness / country olitlcorporation
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Sahtjanand Medical'Iechnologies Limited

Notcs to thc Consolidnted Financirl Stnteorents [or thc ycnr endcd 3l March,2025

Other Incone: Dividend, Interest & Rent Incone:
Dividend lncome is accounted when right to receive the dividend is established.

Interest Income is recognized on time proporlion basls taking into account the amourlt outstandiDg and thc cfl'ective interest rate applicable.

reliably.

f) Businesscombina(ion
Business combrnations have been accounted for using the acqLrisition method undcr the provisions oflnd AS 103, Business CornbinatioDs.

the contingent consideration are recognized in the Consolidated Statenlqnt of Profit and [,oss.

plus the non-conlrolling intercsts'sharc ofsubsequent changcs in equity olsubsidiaries.

In the event lhat the optron expires unexercised, the liability is dcrcoognrzed

incurred.

thc underlying rcason lbr classilying the business combination as a bargain purchase.

g) Properly, Plant and Equipment

Assets are carried at acquisition cost, less accumulatcd deprecialion and accumulated impainneill losses, il'any.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, ltet ofaccumulatcd in)painnent Ioss. ifany
The residual values, useful lives and melhods ofdcpreciation ofproperly, plant and equrpmeDl are rsvierved at each financial year end.

the assets are as follows'

Description of the asset listitrrrtcd tJseful l,ife (Ycars)
Building 30-60
[,easehold Buildins (ret'er footnote (i)) l0-20
Electrical Installation 5 - r0
Plant and Machinerv (refer footnote (ii) and (iii)t 5 - 15
Furniture and Fixtures l0
Cffice Equipment 5-7
aomputers (End user device)
Computers (Servers and networks) 6
Vehrcles (Olhcr rhil[ \4olur cycles. scoolers and ollrct 8
Vehicles (Motor cycles, scooters and other l0

Footnotes:
(i) Leasehold Building and Leasehold Improvements are amonised over the period oflease.
(ii) Number ofshifts is additionally considered while calculating depreciation on plant and machinery.
(iii) lncludes machineries placed at customer premises.

h) Goodwill

liabilities ofthe acquiree are assigned to those units.

the year.

i) Other Intangible Asrets

an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.

The useful lives ofintangible assets are as mentioned below:

Description of the asset Estinratrd tiseful l,ife (Yetrs)
Computer Software, Distribution Network and Patents and'lladenlarks 3

Customer Relalionship and llrand and'l'echnologics 7

Non Compe 4
Development (-'ost

5
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Saha.ianand Medical Technologies Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financinl Statemetrts for the year ended 3l March, 2025

bcnefits, the availability ofresources to cornplele lhe asset and the ability to measurc rcliably thc cxpcndrturc during thc dcvclopmcnt

amortised over the period olexpected future sales or use

loss when the asset rs derecognised.

j) FinaDciallnstrunrent

Rccognition and initial meastrremcilt

recognrzcd by the Group when it becomes a party 1o thc contractual provisions olthe financial instmment

through profit or loss, in which case the lransActror costs are imnredrately recognrzcd in prolit or loss

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

inveshncDls that are readily convertible into known anrourlts ofcash and which arc subject to insignilicant risk ofchangcs in valuc

For the purpose ofthe statenrent olcash flows. cash and cash equivalcnts consist ofcash and shorLternl deposits, as de6ned above

Financisl assels at anlortised cost

Financial assets at fair value through other contprehcnsivc inconrc

flows on specified dates that are solely paynrerrts ofprincipal ilDd intcrcst on the plincipal an()unt oulstanding and selling llnancial assets.

Financial assets at frir value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classil-red as held for trading ifthey are incurrcd lbr tlre purpose ofrcpurchasing in the Dear tcflr

Other financial liabilities

interest (EIR) method.

Equity instrumeilts

proceeds received net otidirect issuc cosl.

Derecognition of fi nancial iilstrtrilrents

F{ir value mensurenrent

the signlficance ofthe inputs to the fair value nreasurements in its cntirety, rvhich are describcd as fbllows:

[,evel I inpuls are quoted prices (unadjustcd) in active markcls fbr identical assets or liabilitics thal the entily can access at thc n]easurenent date;

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for lhe asset or liability.

ll
t(
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Sahajanand Medical Technologies Linritcd

Notcs to the Consolidated Financial Statenrents for thc year ended 3l March, 2025

k) ForeignCurrency'Iransactions

The Consolidated Financial Inlormation is presentecl in Indian Rupees (lNR in lac) rvhich is also the Group's firnctional currency

Initial Recognition

ofthe transaction

Subsequent Recognitioil

Profit and Loss under Other Incorre

l) Etrrployee Benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, employee statc insurance schemc, gratuity llnd and compcnsatcd absences

end f)ellned benefit costs are composed oll
i sgrvice cost rccognized in profil or loss;
ii. net interest on the net liability or asset - recognized in profit or loss,
iii. remeasurement ofthe net liability or asset - recognizcd in other comprchcnsive inconlc

Other long-term employee benefits:

value ofthe defined benefit obligation at the reporling datc.

m) Lesses

The Group evaluates each contract or arrangement to determine whether it qualifies as lease as defined under lnd AS I 16.
A contract is, or contains, a lease ifthe contract involves:

(a) the use ofan identifi€d asset,

(b) the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use ofthe identified asset, and
(c) the nght to direct the use ofthe identified asset

Ihe Grouo as q lessee

term) and low-value assets.

of-use assets is depreciated using the straightline method from the commencement date over the shorter oflease term or useful iife ofright-of-use assets.

2(o) below.

the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Lease payments (olher than short term and low value leases) have been classified as cash used in Financing activities in the statement ofCash Flows.
Lease payments for shon-term, and low value leases, have been classified as cash used in Operating activities in the Statement ofCash Flows.

The Group has not given any assets on lease to others.

n) Ctrrrent and Deferred Tax

other comprehensive income or in equity, respectively.

enaoted or substantively enacted at the reponing date.

Tax assets and tax liabilities are oflset when there is a legally enforceable right to set offthe recognised amounts.

e"



Sahajanand Medical Technologies Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year €nded 3l March, 2025

i. Current income tax

rates and the prevailing tax laws.

ii. Deferred tax

the transaclion.

and unused tax losses can be utilised.

the defered income tax asset to be utilised

o) ImpairmentofAssets

largely independent ofthose from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

loss is recognised in profit or loss.

p) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities aod Contingent Assets

efFect ofthe time value ofmoney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate ofthe amount aannot be made.

events not wholly within the control ofthe entity. A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed where an inflow ofeconomic benefits is probable.

Segmena reporting

assessment and to make decisions for resource allocation.

The reporting ofsegment information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose ofperformance assessment and resource allocation to the segmenls.

identified to segments on the basis oftheir relationship to the operating activities ofthe segment.

Exceptional ltems

separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance ofthe Croup and to assist users offinancial statements.

Governmeni Grant

established and there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection ofexport proceeds.

Borrowing Costs

v) Share-basedpaymetrtarraDgenteilts

ofthe fair value ofequity-settled share-based transactrons are set out in note 36

transfbrred to general reserve on account ofstock oplions not cxercisecl by elrployees

its extension and shares held by lhe Trust are trcated as treasurJ shares.

reponing ycar are satisfied wilh treasury shares.

q)

0

F.

r)

s)



Sahajanaud Medical Technologies Limitcd

Notes to thc Consolidated Finatrcial StateDents for the yenr ended 3l Mrrch,2025

rv) lJarnings Per Shsre

equity shares.

x) Statement of(-'ash flolvs:

payments. The cash flows tiom operating, !nvesting and linancing activities oflhe Group are segregaled basgd oD thc available information

u) Kev Sources of Bstimation

and liabilities within the next financial year

Uselul livcs ofproperty, plant and cquipnlent and rntangible assets

inlbrmation available lo the Managernent.

w



Srhajanand Medical Technologies Linrited

Notes to the Coilsolidsted Finatrcial Statemeilts for thc yerr.ended 3t March,2025

EmDloyee bencfit plan

changes in these assumplions will impact thc carrying antount ofobligatiotls.

tmpairment of financial assets

yea.

experienccs. lndividual trade receivablcs are rvrillen offwhcn nranagemenl deems thenr as ilot collectible.

Income Taxcs

Goodwill

2.2 ReccntPronouncements:

beginning on or after I April 2025.

'Ihe Company is evaluating the impact ofthcsc amendnrents. Based on initral asscssnlent, no Drtcrial inlpact is expccled.

!,,:*r*\s=rr:
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Srhnjrrend Mcdic0l Tehnologlos Llmited

Nots fomlng pon ofthc Consolidatd fln0nclal Stat€n0n6 for rhoyoarendd 31 Mnrch,2025

Norc{: Currcnr lDishenE

lrvc$mcnb hr dcbl wrdliE(valucd at fairlolue throuS[ ltl)

Nolc 5 i Lous
(A) Non.Crrftnt kaDs
Unrocud, Conrlded Cd

Lens to omploles
hns to othcE

(B)CurRnthrns
Un*cund. Condderd cod

kns lo emploFs

Footnoi.:

Nore6: Other Fln.dclotasr
(A) Non-CurFnr rinuclal A$ct

Sccudty hpsils
considcM gd
Considori doubtlll
Ias : Allo\ril@ for doubtful doFits

Dcril, with htrks St[ nBruiry otmorc tfiln l2 ilonll]s (rcrtr tblnorc (i) snd (ii))
Rsivablc lioN Cmtuity Fund

IilctsS Reiv0ble on UnMurei Inns & Dl$ih

(i) Includcs hwils ot Rs. &3.8 I l0s (3 I March. 2024: Rs. 367.9 | lacs) licn ss collalcral lo$ards lendcr dcsj6 nDd hnk sxsr0nrs.
(ii) ftthdcs DsM hpsils of Rs. 855.00 tacs (3 I Msrch 2024: Rs. 855.00 tacs) Iioil as coilatent b\Mds htro\irss

(B) CurFnr Ftnnnclsl Asts

Ssnriry hpsils (Considod 8d)
Dcpsils silh hilk ongirsl rnaMity of moru flun , 2 nroriltrs snd rcnrairirS trhrtriry oI t6s ilratr I 2 ilroillhs (rcti:r tbfirote)
Inlere$ R@ivablcon unsud lnnssnd dcpits
lb^$rd Contact Mcivabl€
Olhd l@ivshl$ (Considerd sd)

lDtud$ &Fsis of Rs. I 30. I 0 laos (3 I Mrrch. 2024: Rs. 89. I 9 laos) lictr !s couslcmt to\uds lcMcr dcpsik {nd UAnk Smmnlccs.

Norc 7r hfond T.t asrs/ Lrrbflrrr.s

Dcferred lor aeb/ (llablllilB) prsntd l. rhe Consottdolcd Batnnc. Sh.et:

Dcfcd laxask
Dcfed laNLiabilitie

A\trl3lMn(h.2(125  sill3lNIir.h.2{r2l

8t 58 n1 (t
st58 I

690.17 654.49
87_27 5:.75

(87.27) (52.?5)

t.498.81 1.222.91

- 66.8{

155.?9 107.33

%

ltti
Ilo.lo 89.19
ull

6.1 l{)
i0 5, ?590

,ru

As,lllNl{r.h,21125 A5ut3ltrl{r(h,21121

l.l9t 9t

(A) Th. balsnce otdcrcnd iox u*B comnrk temmEn.ditrerrnccs !(ilbumbt. ri,: .-
Crrditcd(Chtrreed) Crrdltcd(ChaE.d)t'P{ffcuh'r as tri 0l Apdl, 202{ Rcsri,upcd. ro conroildtrt d shr.menr or ,,ih",.;*;,"hi;i; nrkn currq'rrHmhrbn 

As !t Jl Milrch,2o2s

ImPinncnl ofrinancial Asrr l.27q.ta I t7. t0 375 14 - r r.60 r.78l 23nnrploluB!tr.lik 47{.88 a21 103.26 161.66 l.l, lr)5t.51Caded tb^vad BNirs Irss
kas liabitirics 106 85 ().(,1) (t5.56) - 7.82 99.10

qhcrpmvbions (46 t9) (90.36) (1i6.75)

DcrcndrsrAsB(nil) 
ll5'95 416115 84141 2661 l-402.0J

tffiiii-

,L*tllM,,.l,J,|lr,l"-rtllNl*f.rli#f

(l'0dircdtChilr!cilt Cr(dhc,r{('h,rBot)r,

lnpaimcntofl,iuncilt^sts .,.,_ _,

Cadd lbNad Ilusircsl,os$s

Dclenql Tor Aseb(n(O

t.0l 3.3t
?69.21
t51.3?
({1 55)

265.8?
l19.l 5

(2t.61)

0.il)

(1 r;)
(:4.9t)

1.179 t8
471 88

loai.85

A\ ill0l April,2ll2t
Ccdikl/(( [ilrscd)

t, Cdnsoliht.d Snilcnrctrt of
l\oUl trnd Lo\s

(icditd(Ch,'Ail) k,
othcr ronrprctr.n\hc Fu'ri!il (ir rrtrr\ Tr xn\lilrn,n

Dirrcr"rrrc A\rrJl \lnr,l,:(rl5

Dinirensbh\@il b@kh*andts\ba$ofpropdt:ptsnlandequipncnttrnd ixailSibtc$$b
ImDainrcnt oI lilranciel As*ls

Ctrdd lbNard Bushc$l.5s

hforrcd Tot Llsbtllti.s (nel) (273.9{) 273,9{ (158.r2i- 071.s{)

(81 5 15)
I I 7.10

4.27
() ln)

Et5.35
( I 17. to)

(8.37)
o.ol

l.5l

r.ol

ti6

As.r0l  fril.2ll23
G'dihd(Ch{rB(l)

k, connilililrcd srilr.'nrnr nf
Il.frr {nd Loss

CRlild(Ctilsd) ii,
orh.r (nnprch.nsi\. t,ilriln Currrn(\ fHnJnrnilr

Oirrcr..* ,\\,ilJt itil'rl.]iltl

Diftrcne hl$en hk hsand rs\ b0$of prcNny. ptant ondequrpnrtrlstrd iilar8rbl.dsch
rilrFrmcnt ol ttr[n(0t Asts
linployEBoncfits
Cidd lonrardBushsLoss

D.fend T.r Llsblllti$ (nci)

( l.E7.i4)
38.{8
t2.61
().01)

299 2?
82.25
,:,

(815.15)

I l?.10
827
().(tr)

t2 91

(6.1o)

?L.

!8!.19 ((n).91) 66t) lt5.e5l.8lr.ol , J{5.r0 61.{8



snttrjtrntrnd Mdic{l't..hnotrirics Limitcd

NoteslorninsptrriolthcConyiliduhdFnr!trcinlSnrtcmcncnn-rhct.trrcndcd3lNtrrh,z0z5

Inr lhc lrilr wlil 3l Mrr(h,
2t25

lor lhr)cirrndcd 3l Mrr([
l0ll

^)B)
c')
D)

lt

ndian Slal[lory C0rpmlc Ts\ Rslu

lnr on rccountlnq Prcfi U(h)
I) lar oD cNpnso nol laN ddrclible
[) lrss on which dcfcrred hx is ml roco8ilipd
[)Inpsoiduo rodilE cnlisl rax rutcsir resFlivc@nnrdca
lV) UliliMtioil ot pr€vious lur lossi Carn lbN fld lrs*s ot'Hdicr \!ars on s hich dc&rred til s 0s nor rucogniscd iil eilrlirr tq6
V) Tfl x rcht(d lo mrlier )urs
U) Tax cntot oD various olher itcilr,
lot{l el)bl oflax AdjusrDoilis ((l) ro (u))
!!! lxFne ,@snid dnrii8 lho r@r

4JrE1 00

2!.t?0,
1.027.t I

90:.66
t39:l
t3t 28

(2lo 051

15.170"

832,88
16i.2?
:16 58

(H8 791

1.888.r8

Dl*losun puBurn(b IndAS 12 IncomeTues
Curcnt Ta\
hltrred Tax
Tax rclald lo urlicr yua

Tolol lorerFma
Tax cnbr otr Orhcr CoNprclrcnsivc Insnp

(D) Tu ll|s forwhlch oodefcrrd lar h rrosnhed

Uiltrd ls\ los \yith resrt lo lbrciSn srbsidirrios:
- Urusd ts l(Nserpirhs iil E ]us
- Unud tsx loss luvirS no expiry dnlc

(A) Olh€r osb. Notr<urFnt
Urseud, ConilderEd gd

trrdi@l laxca @vaBblc
CspitalAdvarcc
Prcpaid c\Fnss
Ballne Nilh covonnncilt Arilhoilics (paid (ndcr prcr.sl)

(B)otherrsts- Onrtrt
Unrcud, ConddeNd 8d

IndiHl laxs rsovenblc (Nct ofprovasion: Rs.4.156.04 Iscs (-1 I Marul 2024i trs.4.l?3.68 tnos))
Ad\rncc losupplieE
PrcFidexPtrs
Adv.nces lo eilrployecs

2.1 [ i2
(95? -13)
I 888.1N

t.56S.E1 _ {.0{t.6?

1.r20.28

0.55t.44)

5i 18

As{t3lllilrrl.2ll2s i!rlllNltrr(h,lo2l

1.0i5.?9
l.5t9.lo

15.(rl

t.9!1.t5
50.{l
?8 5l

:.810.05 l.?r1.98
2.113.1., l.l{:.72
I _126.57

Ir5.{i l3r t7
6.78S.t3 ffi

eL

e""ilimmiui -----e""i

2.768.93 l.tE8 to
tt6t.75 4.8t8.r1
6.230.6A 9,026.11



s0hejsn{nd Mdlcrl Tcchnologlos Lhllod

Nol6 fomlng p{fi of the Con$lldrted Flnanclal Stet.menk for th. }qr cnded 3 I Marrh. 2025

Notc 9 | INcnlorl6 (A. lo$or of c6t ,d nct Nsllsa ble ruluc)

liinichd Goods

(lrcludir8 CoodlhTmn$il R$.128.23 laos(31 March.2024: Rs 146.50 lflos))
Rawnrslcd.l

(lNludiil8 CoodsJr-Tansil Rs.22?.30 lf,cs (3 I M.rch, 2024: Rs I I 5.?5 lscs))
Work-i'Fpro8rs
PaoliinS nraicdal

Slou {trd sprH
Stet in hde (lnc,udnr8 cd$IlTmnsil Rs. I 49.90 laos (3 | M.rcfi. 2024 | R,.50?.5 r ta.s))

(i) Ihe 6l of invcDtoilG mpid as an exprsc licludcs Rs.1.500.02 hcs (31 Msrch 24: Rs. 1489.?3lss) in Grr oINdrc-do$n of inurory lo ilcr rcnli$blo !trlir.

Note l0: Tmde Reclrsbles

CoDsidcrcd gd
Considcd doubttul

hs: Allorvstre forhFimD0l oflinancial AseA

 \illllnln'rI.2(ll5 A\illJlllilr(h.]lr2l

I0.870.80

6.208.22

2.268.2C

5?3.73
I0l 25

6.427.8?

2.(X)i.q)

5.19.S8

t66.2{

As nr ll m'r(h.2025 As nt 3l llildr. 2lr2{

26.147.6t 2l i1681
6.t7dl2 6.t2t.29

32.S2r.9S 21,838.12
(6.t?J

As nl 3l U"r(h.2(r2S Ar ilt 3l lt,'rh, l{}21

(ii) Allo\rne lbInPnDrotrroIl.imncillAMa

OFiliu llalatr*
 dd: Allo\ntrcoduilrg llc ycsr
Ixsr Rc\rMhdoilsttro Frr
Iorcigtr Cuircnor TmnJrtion Dilticn@

(21)1t)
liStl

(l_6089t)

(iii) No silr8lc cudomcr @trldbulcd Noro llutr I 09 o or rnorc ot ilre (ioup s rolsl rcvcil& lbr lhc !.ar ctrded .1 I Msrctr. ?(,?5 atrd j I Mnroh. 2( )24.

frnil0RrrclHucsArcinrs(hcilulc(fhillhcdu.ilillciltniltnrcntl: 
{B\.rnlilh)

p,rricura,s utrbilcd Nnrdur l."j::iil 
.,i,:::::- 

r.2yu!r 2_ry(rrs Nrtr.crh{n3yulrs .1trilr

AsnlJl M{r.h.2025
(i) llidistillcd- co!sidcrcd 8ood 2lt Ll t?.181 il ?_531 52 890.8 187.04 - .11.18

519.28 t.76t.Jl. l?1.49 -rto.r)E ?t)J 2: .r.t88 i7(ii) llildisturcJ, corsidcrcd doubllll
riii) l)+ilod. $rsidcr.d g@d
(il1 I)isfulcd. orsid!rcd douhllll

Ar sr 3l M!rth.2lr2l
(i) lhdispnlcd. corsidcrud 8d
(ii) I Jndisnulcd. considercd doubllnl
(iii) r)istrril. orsntcrcd 8ood
0\) l)isrutcd- considcrcd donhtlnl
Totnl

Nole ll Cosh lnd cGh equh.l.nts

Bslsnesilh htr*s
Currcnrs@unl
EEFC a@nDts (h Ibroi8n ctrmncy)
hpsits withorisinalilratildb of lsttrn 3 nrcnlhs

chequesonddnnson hond
Ronillane'illlmnBil
Cnshon h!trd

F@lnotoi TheGrotrp his nol lmdd or nrvGld in Crypto curcncyor Vanuat CtrftnDydurir8 lhc yqr.

Notc 12. Oth.rbrnkbohnccs

Ilpsih having ilrtuily of 3 to I 2 ilmnlhs (rcfor ti@rrolc)

lrchdos hpils oI k. I 5.9 I IrcB (3 I March. 2024: Rs. I 3J9 t0cs) licn {s coltatcml toNads hnl Snamiltar and teildcru.

7.020 28

8l6.ll
1.9 t9 89

1.03

248.16

5i8.67
901.82

81.71

Ar {l 3l Mnr.h, 2l)25 As nt 3l Ntil..h, ?021

' lll (,r tgo.ll
t3lru

\i{

Asnl3ltrlilr(1.21125 A\trrJltrlilrch,2ll2l

. l.l4 t{.(,4 252.57 103.9t 2.t11.?7 2385 7jimis



Strh4rnand Mdlcul T..hnoloBlN Llm[d
Notes fomlng prtofthe Con$lldoled Flnrnrlrl Strrcmcnb for th.)er ended 3l Marrh,2025

Note 13: EquityshnNcapltrl

I 6.99,00.000 cquity shaN of Rc I r Boh

I$ued,subsrlbed ild fuuy pald'up sh.re caplt{l
9.76.00132 (31 Miroh:024:9,?4.50:32) equity Shsres ofRe lr qch fully psid{rp(Rcfcr lbolmte l2(c))

 snl3liluch.2lr25 A\{tJl[t{r.h,2(12{

t.699 00

976.00

1.5(xr.0r)

97{.50

I h$! Jwrs do ixn cr6 \oritrE ri8hrs. I rnlcr d(ril\ r. tno\ rd*l ii ilorc I 5

l3(r): D.rrib ofriqhB Drefcrcnces and rcstl.tions riloched to lir cqutNsnrNhotd.rs:
'Ihc Prenr ComFny hasonc clissofcqtiry sharcs halnrg a he vnlE oIRc. I Fr shrrc. liauh slaruholder is clisiblc tbroilc votc Fr s[0re lcld

88umeill lo SSIh datd l9 hmbr,2017 aild 12 J.nuq,.2t)23.

lhc huyback noticc lothcPar.nl CoNtarI.

I(tuil) Shilrcs lor llr lrtrr rndrd
3l Ntilrch,2025

EquI\ Shn,r\ tur thc tcxr (nded

Jl Mrra[.21,2{

No. Amoutrl in hG No Anxrunt h lucs
liqtril!9hnBoUhlsndi,8allhch8illnil8oflhc)gr

l0.l4l)1.212 I

 dd: Sharcs kud dudn8lhcpr
Iiqdly sharcsoublatrdirS hlbN tl6ury drarcs

Irsr TrcnsuryshorcshcldutrdorESOPTrust
Equity sharcsorblatrdirssl lho cndin8 oflh€ y6r(rcr ollHilry $urcs)

l3(.)r Note torshl$ hcld undor EsoPTru$:
Thchrcrl ComFnylaecrcalcd nn Iinrplor@ St*[Opliotr I,lsn(ljsol')lbrprclidi]gdrarc.hjcd palrciltloirsDnrploy@s.

l8.0ljxx) tE.ol 19.5t.000 l9 5l
,.?6.00.13, I

L]SOPtrusasitsc\lonsionondsharcshcldbrliSOPrNarurqrdastMstrrysharc!.

shares BeNed lbr issue undcr ESOP 2o2l ottho Parcn( Conrpatry. rctlr noic.1?.

Iquih Sh.ros itr. ltc\cnrrndcd
3l M{Nh,2025 3l M{rch,202{

No. Amounl in h.s N0 Alnount in tacs
sharcs ol'Rs. I sch ftrll) Fid-up h{ld lrdsr IjSOl, l}trsr
lituil! strrrus oulshDdltrS.l lhc bcgirninS ol lhc \.{r
Add : Chitrg.s durirs lh. \un (()ptinrs o\ccrliscd)
lrqrrl! slir.s otrlshndinB rr thc ctrd olthc \crr

(l_ir).rxlr) (t j(D -

J8.t)1,000 ru l2lr

39.53.UD 39.51 39.5t.0rI)

: llhrrsar l)hnqhl Kohdil

' U.Nolrrs dilcbq.d il$c irc ils pcr sudinr l(6r) olil,c (lrnFnilr Aot.:(i I 3

l3(d: D.trlhofshaFholdcN holditrsmorc thnn 5%sh{resln lho poNnr Compunr

... Equh!.ShnNsilsat3l Marrh,202s Bqut[,Sh,r.strs{r3l Mor.h,202t
-:' Numeorshnrcholdor

No.ofshnrcshcld %ofHoldlns^ No.ofsh{'rshcld %orHoldftrs.

2 S8nlamCapililMsrkcbHoldiBsLiritd
3 MIPEA SFrlilc HoUnB B. V
4 KolakPrcPooppnuniliBtund

+ forlhc ptrNol'lhcqlcutdion, totsltrunrhrof sharo nrcldes'IMsury ShaEs issned to tisop intsl

Noie l{: otherEqult)

Sccudlica prcnrium
Rclshd {mirgs
IrorcisD Curercy lrailslation Resrvc
Capihl Rowrvo on Busines Combimlion
Sharc Oplioil Oulslandirg Rescnc
Gncml ffirvc

Nel ofofRs. 1,447.73 laca (31 MsEh ?024: Rs. 1.593.?? lacr) clinrnrlcd lbr rIc sharcs i$ud by thc l)arcnr co,npnr to sMl tjsop lru{

l.ixr_9?.55E

dr.75.tl?
li:80!

t.t8_5i.ril

61.:9.915

47158.1Nt
2f,5t.t2

724.04
t.-124.65

2.155.66

476t3.15
| 227 -91

5l 48
l.l2{.65
l_511.05



suh,jdnand Mcdl.olTc.hnoloslc Llmllcd

Nots fohltrg podofthe Coniolld0id Flnonclal Stltemcnls lor lhe lrrrendd 3l Murch,2025

lsi!-A$qEsuq
(a) (i) Sccurities pnrdun

oFnirgtsalane
Closin8tsshnce

(a) (ii) SocudtlN pnmium Bftoinirg to hrrsun shsrB
OFning hlane
t ssr PrcmiuNoneNercisollSOPs
Closing brhn@ of suillics prciltiuil Fnaililg lo lhc lusury slNrcs

Net kurlds Premtum brhncc t(n) 0)+ (i) (nll

(b) Crpllal R€Fc on Buslnes Comblnatlon
oFnnrgBalsD@
ClosnE Balaile

(c)CencmlRe$'ac
oFnirsbalane
lddr Tmnslbrd frem Sharc Option Oubt0ildh8 rc$Nc
cl6inSBalatrs

(d) Share Optlon OublandlnsRenr
OFnirg Balotre
Addi Addilion durinS thc )@r
kss: TnnsfDrcd lo R€taind amings
bs: Tnnsferto sudlies prcnriuDr and quily on cxcoi* oactrrploye sek optioils
closnS llikncc

(o) R.hlnd earnlns
oFniils bslane
 dd:Profil / (h) for116year
Olher CoilrprchcNivc IMnrc
ClosinsllalaDe

Ilems ofOlher Conprhendrc Income

FoNIF Srchinac TDndadon Rscnt
oFiliishlane
Exchanrc Cairr(los) or tailslaliotr of fimncial datcilrcnk ol tbEiN oerfllions
CbnrgBalsna

Nature atrd purpe olftson s:

(b) Cspihl Re*fle rep(ents lh. addilionsl nol ash rucivcd on purchase of $a*c ir a $rbsidiary dudng rhe \u. cndd I I M{rctr. 2r)2o.

8cncftl rcsrvc Ull nol brcclasifidsubsqnortlyloCotrsolidrlcd Statcnrcilloftlottr and tnss.

camir8s on accounl ofil@t oplioni not c\crcid hyerplolEs.

(e) Rclanrcd qninSs rcpNnt lhc anronilt of accuNililcd snrirSs oI thc crouD.

As ilt 3l tr1ilrh, 2(r21

0.59127)

0,117.72) 0.593.27)
17.758.m 47,612.15

t-12J.65 l_l?1.6t
1.32{.65 1,321.65

lE2.ll 1u.96

2a233 282.33

2.513.05 ?.171.97
10.66 152.45

t't'n" 
t"t"

2.?55.66 2.$3.05

1227.97 2.67t36
2.01i.84 (1.27('.5{)

il.l8 t6:!
6?l lr) ( il st )

721.68 51.J8

E-



Suhnjrnand Medl$l Tft hnolosles Llmiled

Noa6 fomlng part ofth. Conrolldolcd Fln.nci.l Ststam0nb for tho}ear.ndd 3l Mrrch,2025

Nolc l5: BorDDinS

(A) BoNNinS: Non-Corft nt
SccuNd

1cm Iffils
F onr l}8trls (rol'0r Fmholo (i) aild (ii))

limnr Olhors (rcfn F@hore (iii))
vchiclc loans

Iroilr llanks(rcl_cr lj@hole (iv) sild ({))

I 0.000 I 2.18% cnrul.livc rdemahlc prcfcrcil@ shsics ot lis. I (,r caoh (Retur [@firolc (yi))

lN'Ctrrcnr ilrAruririus ot'lons rcnn hrre\or

(B) Borrutrins: Cunrnt

C0$ crdib licililr rcFlrblc on dcnaild (rclb tbtrolc (i))
WortiBqpital,Nns rcEtrble kd oil &xNolivc rcnnrc (rotir horrole(ii) and (iii))

worRrg upital l@ns rcFlable otr denmild

WoIIilrAspihllonsEF$hlchdoilrcselivctcntrB
Ctmnt ilatuilics of lrng lcnn hrotlir8s

 s ilr 3l ilirdr.2015 A: ilt ll Mtrrch.202{

5,6{9.88 5,127.16
(2.066.EE) (?.717.?E)

llll]lL iilooox

:0?4: RB 133.26 lscs) is rcpayable Nilhir oDc rqr.nd rfie smc h0s tuil irctudcd ir cnreill trranrritics ollotrsrean htro\i[Bs.

l!.r).irrcFysblcsilhnr I I*r.ndlhe silcfixshcD irchdcd h clmnl nmtrriticsollotrg]cnn hrcsnr8s

lacs (3 I Msch. 2024 : Rs. 5l).?0 lac9, ts repayablc \'ilhh I war and lhc strrc has hu induded i n ourent trrfuitics or'loilslcm bro\ irgs

hls lhan 20 yq6 lioDr ilc dalc oI allornctrl. lSirsr .lcry I (, ftlll Fid up cquil drarcs oI Rs. I (x) ceol ield hI o cquilr Srsrctotd.r nr Vcl -.

?.91t.t3 5.53?.E4

2.595 l?

l4:.9t 189.9:

9]E,4I
9.4?6.45

tJ3{ 34

1.0a6 88 :.7 17 78

Iru

(iii)hch'd6l@n hlen bylhoPsrunlConrFtry from sl!trdsdchoderd llsilkNhiDh kAddiriomll)'w{rd bIllcFMilols$mnt@oIlrcnrot*

ffi
3l Mrrch.2025 ll M{rch.202{

l7-526.9ri ll-2 I 8.15
2.62t t1

(2.6N.1 l{))
.1.86t I 5

1.o80 ll
I L5r[) (Xr

l.?6i l0
I 5rm ([)

(C) Roconcltlstion ofmorrmonh oflisbttli.r to cash flotrs sfttng frbm flnnncing acttrt0N
llorosings sl lhc bgilni18 ot the y€s. (curcnt nnd ilotr-cr,rcnt brcs ings)
l)Ms lronr notr{urcnl hro\irs!
RcFIncnls ol non{ur.nt h[o\ ilrg!
I\@dv(rcpaynMl) oI slodrcD brcwinSs (rcI)
L\change mi.dinbrcnlill on tandatilrg thc finatrohl darcrncnk o! rbroip o&ntions
BoNslnS at lhe end of(he ycar (curNnt and non{urrent bouflrtns)
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Slhojen{nd Mcdlcal Tchnologie Lhitcd

Not6 loming pofiof(he Consolidatcd Financlal Siot mcn.s for lhe lcur.ndd 3l Mnrch,2025

Nole l6: Oiher fi natrcirl ll,blliti$

(A) ka$ Llobllls' Non-CurNnt
Lca* Liabilili6 (Rcfcr Nole No. 40)

(B) kss Lirbilii. Cumnt
kas Liobilarics (Rct'crNole No. 40)

(C)OIh(rfrn.nchlllabllltl6-Non{urrnt
Seudlyll$ils frcrothcE
S@udly Ilpsil lbilr CuslonEa
Iavc Etrqshnlent Payablc

Pul odioil liabilily ro\rrds Non-cotrtrolhr8 lilcEl Sharchold.r
Enrployec rclslc/ liabilities
Ghruily Papbtc
OlherPa)€blc

+Sdurd hy ilrveillory hcld on corsi8ilileill hsis

0) Olh.r fine nciol lhbllllles- Currctrt

A\ ni ll )Inr(tr.21125 i\ nr Jl nhr(h. lll:l

8tl ?1 Er)5 r)l
firu

3.71

I 1.73

445 44
175 45
l:1.01
599.t 5

t6.21
17903
208.3E

lt)01

(lrpihl Crcdilors

69.90
26t {0

1.152.1)

57.4:

868.49
1.12

6t.i3
128 5l

?.{t,
591.14

- lolsl otrlslandinadfts ofcdilou olhu lhaNniotu entcmds.nd snrall ciltcmriws

Lmplovcc rchld liabililics
lilerGl a@rud but not due oil broNirEs
Lqvc Encaslnncnt Payable
IroNid onraot payahlc

OlhcrPalEblcs

Nol. l7: Tr{d. P.Fbl6

Dncon a@nnt of sds rurchad and *Niccs @eivd
ioial oublaildinS ducs of trricrc onlqd$ and snall cnrcryri$s
lolal oublandir! duca ofcrditoB olh€R tfiil Dicrc ctrtemd$s md snNll enlcDrisc

A\ilJlMirrh.2(125 ArillJln1irrh,2(121

lrl oi
8.7:i :l 7.el I r[)

lM -!,?]L!tl

pnrdcutaN unbiled Nordue Lj:than r.2y.sr 2-3ycilF MorctftnnJyc{N Torrt;
(i) Mic,o. nnall i,\l hcdiunr cnl.qnisc(MSMli)

(iii) Ilspured dtrcs - MSMIj

149.08 1.280.60 11 17 tl5 3.Ei, t-61?.60
1.481.54 .1321.& 2t.93 0.84 9t 2l 4,7?5.-?1

rivr n!$ilr./ An.( - ()rh.(

prdcutoN unbi,ed Notdue Y='
'

(i)Micro.sn)allaildmdnnentcrpdsc(MSm)
(ii)orhcrs

l8t t9
l.{)51 8l

8t.52
?.449-.17

1.64 l..nr
782.79 90_0?

271 (,5

?.9tt rx),tf

Notc: Whcrcver lhcdrcdatc ofFymcnl h ilot sFcifid. ilEdilc oftEtrsction h silsidcEd tbr rhc ptrrps ofohvc dbdostrc.

Nolo 18: Pm*lotr
(A) Prcvblon - Non-Arlcnt

I\oviliotr for cmhily

(B)P'rvbion -Cunrnt
Prclision lbr ConrFil$ld Abscnes

Notc l9: Oth.rcurNn! lhblllrks

conhcr Lishiliiics (rcfq fmrmle blov)
Slatilory dues

F@inolo:

A\ nt Jl }Iirah.2(125 As it 3l Hildr.2021

 sillll}lnrrtr.2(125 Arillll[Iirctr.2tr2]

t..lli p ,76.11
l'xo:ru

ee

616l .L4l
61.61 lH

l{1.{o I l?.61
tru



Sahajanand Medical'[echnologies Limited
Notcs forming part ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements for the year endcd 3l N,larch,2025

Note 20: Revenue From Operations

Sale ofProducts (ref'er nole lrelow)

Note 2l: Other Income

Interest income on financial instruments rneasurcd at amortised cost
Bank deposits

Loan to Partics

F'rorn Customer
Others

Rent Income
Provision no longer required written back

Gain on tennination of Leases (net)
Net foreign exchange gain

Proflt on sale ofProperty Plant & Equiplnents (net)
Miscellenous Income

Notc 22: Cost of materials consumed

Inventory at the beginning ofthe ycar

Add: Purchases

Irorei gn currenoy Translation difl'erence
l.ess : lnventory at the end olthe year

Note 23: Purchasc of Stock-in-trade

Purchase of Cardiac Accessocenes

Note 24: Changes in inventorics of finished goods, stock-in-tradc and work-in-progress
l(Increase) / Decreasel

Inventories at the end ofthe year:

Finished goods

Work-in-progress
Stock-in{rade

Inventories at the beginning ofthe year:

Finished goods

Work-in-progress
Stock-in-trade

lioreign Currency Translation Difference

6,710.87 5,080.67
(A) 19,ti49.9s I 8,092.70

(Rs. in lacs)

For the Year ended

31 March,2025

Iror the Ycar endcd

ll March.2024
1.02,481.92 90. I 60 36

1,02,487.92 90,1 60.36

revenue and reconciliation ofrevenue rvith contraot price is also disclosed in segment reporting (relbr note 34 for seglnent reporting).

(Rs. in lacs)

I,'or the Ycar e nded

3l N'larch,2025
I,'or thc Year cnded

3l ]lalch.2024

278.56
0.78

411.27

4l .95

1.91

16.s2

62 34

288.96

147 02

.l1.75
21 27

142.02

45 82

52.54
1(r.4{t

242 08

1.r 08.32 698.9tt

(lls. in lacs)

Itor thc Year cndcd
3l March.2025

I,'or thc Ycar e ntled
3l iVIarch. 202.1

7,133 64

21,379.81
6,458.96
,5 0s5 17

2tt,s1 3.s l
165.63

(6,83s.2 I )

3l,s1,1.23
(97 63 )

(7. I 33 64)

24.282.9621,843.93

2,893.35

(lts. in lacs)

For the Year endctl
3l March,2025

lior thc Year cntletl
3l iVIarch. 202.1

5,145.63 1 Rq1 15

5, I 45.63

(lls. in lacs)

I,'or thc Year cndcd
3l March,2025

I,'or the Ycar cndcd
3'l i\{arch, 202J

| 0,870 80

2,268.28

I 1,006 t3
2,005.90

I 1 ,006. ll
2,005 90

7,964.q4
1,843.97

5,080.67 4,0-i2 55
(B) 18,092.70 13,861.46(c) m

(B)-(A)+(C )_ (1,94913ri) (3,997.72)

R-



Sahajanand Medical Technologies Limited
Notes forming part ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements for thc year endcd 3l March,2025

Notc 25; Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Sharc based payrnenl. expenses

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense

Staff rvelfare expenses

Note 26: Finance Costs

Interest on Borrowings (Refer Footnote)

Interest on lease liability
Other borrowing costs

Footnote:
l'he arnount of Borrowing Cost capitalised during the year is lts. 43.44 lacs (3 I March 2024: N il).

Note 27: Depreciation and amortisation expense

f)epreciation on Prope(y, Plant and Equrpment
I)epreciation on Righ!of-Use Assets

Armortisation of Intangible assets

Note 28: Other expenses

28 (a): Expenses for USI'DA approval *

Clinrcal Trial expenses

Technical Advisory lees

(Rs, in lacs)

For thc Year ended

3l NIarch,2025
l'or the Year entled

3l March.202.l

25.276.76

i69 66

1,769 64

248 48

1,56 t.52

2l ,784.90
I5245

1,60(r.37

I 64.48

1.685 80

29.226.06 2s.394.00

(lls. in lacs)

I,'or thc Ycar ended

3l March, 2025
lor the Ycar cndcd
3l March,2024

1,766.7s

17 1 .42

135.02

I ,691 .4 I

141.64

li1.t0
2,073,19 1.944.1 5

(Rs. ln lacs)
For thc ycar ended 3l For thc ycar cndcd 31

N'Iarch, 2025 March,2024

3,782 76

901 .98

I,568 69

3,712.s]
t,10t 58

1,636.29

(lls. irr lacs)
I.or the Year cndcd
3l March.2025

For the Ycar enderl

31 NIarch.2024

3. s0
143 90

s4 46

381.37

+The above expenses are in relation to the filirrg for approval to the United States lrood and DrLrg AdministLation ([JSFDA) for thc products ol'the Group.



Sahajanand Medical'l'echnologies Limited
Notes fornting part ofthe Consolidated Financial Statcments for the yeal ended 3l N'larch,2025

28 (b): Other expenses

Testing expenses

Clinical Trial expenses

Technical Advisory fees

Power and fuel
Freight and Forwarding Expenses
'fravelling expenses

Sales and Marketing Expense

Advertisement expense

Conference expense

Rent

Rates & taxes

Commission & brokerage

Colnputer Soflware expense
'Insttrance

Repairs and nraintenance

Buildings

Plant and Machinery
Others

Expenditure towards Corporatc Social Responsibility (CSR) activities
Legal fees

Professional lees

Printing and stationery
[,oss on sale on property, plant and equipment (net)
Donation (rel.er footnote below)
Bad Debts
Impainnent of Financial Assets (net)
Net IJxchange Loss

Royalty
Miscellaneous expenses

Total2l (a)+27 (b)

Footnotc

Professional fees paid fbr technical and cor.nnrercial diligence
Severance Pay

1,90-5.86

2,963.67
126 04

739.00

1.580.sq

3,561.66
1,583.85

98.t4
4,326.86

281 25

256.02

1.743.01

193.49

236.09

66.43

2 t 8.08

774 65

97 .17

7 | 3.28

5,609.84
74.26

633 22

56 50

I,60ti 93

177.61

759 03

35,419.44 30.582.89

(Rs. in lacs)

for thr Year ended

3l March,2025
l'or the Ymr cnded

3l lVlarch,2024

1 ,450 52

2,400.57
218 17

720.43

1.678.32

4,263 58

2,504 58

54.04

4,1 19 88

677.08
34s.27

2,349.82
472.50
307.34

5 7.85

300.86
62.5 97

76 55

962 17

7,639 33

58 -36

I 10.68

1,726.6s

295.25
(49 12)
8l2 55

(97.es)

956 82

35,038.07 30,384.53

during the year since the amount exceeded the threshold prescribed under the Conrpanies Aot, 20 I 3.

Note 29: Exceptional It€ms

(lls. in tacs)
Itor thc Year ended

3l March,2025
I,'or the Year cnded
3l March,2024

t .102 94

400 00

1.502.91

e\

P



Saha.janand Medical'Iechnologies Limited
Notes forming part of thc Consolklatetl Financial Statements for the year entled 3 I NInrch, 2025

Note 30: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Contingent Liabilities
Income Tax Matten (Refer footnote (i) and (ii))
Goods and Services Tax Matters

Custolll Matteis
Conmrercial Matters

Footnote:

Commitments
(a) Capital corlr'nitments
Less: Capital advance
'l'otal

(b)C)thcr conrmitmeDts (Refer lootllote (ii) belorv)

Iootnote:

(i)(a) lhepritrcipalamouutrcnrainingunpaidtoanysLrpplierforgoodsandservicesattheencioltheaccouutingycar
(i)(b) The principal atrtouut rentaining Lrnpaid to any sLrpplier fbr capital goods at the eDd ofthe aocouutirrg 1'car
(li)'l'he lnterest dtre on the principal anlount renlaining unpaid to any supplier at thc end olthe accounting year

(iii) The anlount olinterest paid by the buyer in ternls ofscction l6 oftlre MSMEI) Act, 2006. along rrith thc arnounl ofthe
paynlent luade to the suppliel beyond the appointed day during the accotrlring year

(iv) The amount ofirlterest due and payabJe lbr thc year ol'dclay rn nlaking payn)eut (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified undcr this Act

(v) The anlount olfuilher interest relttainiug due and payable even in thc succeedirrg year, until such date when thc interesi
dues as abovc are actually paid to the surall enterprisc for the prtrpose ol'disallorvarrce as a decluctiblc cxperrclitru.e Lurder
section 23 ofthe MSMED Act 2006 F'rulher due and remailing lor the earlier ),ears.
(vi) The amourt ofinlercst accrLred and re:laining uupaid at the end ofeaclr accounting ycar

Note 32: Earnings per share
Ilasic - Earning per share has been computed as untler:
Profit / (Loss) for the year attribr(able to the o\ ners ofthe conrpany (Rs in lacs)
Weighted average nuntber ofequity shares outstanding drn.ing the ycar
Face value per share (Rs.)

Earnings per share (Rs.) - Basic

Diluted - Earning per share has been computed as under:
I'rofit / (Loss) lor the year aftributable to the orvners ofthe conrpany (Rs in lacs)
weighted average nunlber ofequity shares as adiusted fbr the eflecls ofall djlulive poteiltial equity shares outstanding during
thc year

Facc value per share (lLs. )
Earnings per share (Rs,) - Dilutcd

(l{s. in lars)

As at 3l March,2025 As at 3l March.2024
2596 41

155.31

I 74.85

1 1?5 61

4 t6.02
1.417 .61

26. {J8

Cor11pary and it's Indian Subsidiary Conrpany.

Against the above denlauds, the Group had nrade provision ofRs. 2,888.48 l.acs urrder the heacl "Tax related to earlier years" druing FY 2023-24.

(Rs. in lacs)

2,926.37 4,236.11

As at 3l March. 2025 As at 3l March.2024
5,038.26

t,549. I 0

343.69

50.43

293.26

2024 Rs. I I 2.44 lacs).

pre-deterutiued basis. The Fair Value olthe option at the balancc sheet datc is recorded Ltndcr othcr fhancial liabililies.

Note 3l: Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small antl Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Itave been identified on thc basis of information colleoted by Ihe Managenrent.

The Disclosure relating Micro and Snrali Enterprises are as Lrnder:

(l{s. in latst

6,587.t6

143.16

I,672.60
69.90

10 69

273.05

61.52

t3.71

s5.68 4t.97

66.37 55.68

As at 3l March,2025 As at 3l lvlarch. 202.1

2,035.84
9,74,54,342

(1,2'76.s4)
9.72;76.000

1.00 1.00
2.O9 (r.31)

2,03 s.84
I 0, i 0,50,86 I

(1,276.s4)
10,42.62,591

EPS

\-o'
)-rola^

q+

*The carnings I March,2024 being a loss, the potcntial eqtrity shares are nol considercd as dilutive and accordingly Dilgtcd

6.587.36



Sahajanand Medical'l'echnologies Limited
Notes forming part ofthe Consolidated l-inancial Statements for the year en(led 3l l\larch,2025

Note 33: Related party disclosures

(a) Names of related partics and natule of l'elationship:

(l) Enterprises having nrore than I 0% interest over the Group:

(ll) Enterprrses under comrnolr control with whorn transaclions have
taken place during the year:

(lll) Trust over which entity has control/signilicant intluence:

(lV) Ilnterprise where Director is a partner:

(V) Key Managelnent Personnel and their relatives with whotn the
Group has transactions during the year:

Relatcd parties have been identified by the managentent and reiied uporr lry the auditors

(b)'l'ransactions with related parties:
Purchase of Capital goods

Sahajanand Technologies Private Limited

Other Expcnsc
Sahajanand Technologies Pnvatc Limited
Sahajanand Life Sciences Private Limited
Mr. Dhirajlal Kotadia
Infinniurn LL(-'

Reimbursemcnt ofexpenses (claimcd on related party)
Sahajanand'f cchnologies Prii,ate Lirnited
Sahajanand Life Sciences Private Limited
Mr. Dhirajlal Kotadia
Mr, Bhargav Kotadia
Mr. Ganesh Sabat

Mr. Nitin Agrawal

Reimbursement of expenses (claimed try related party)
Sahajanand Technologies Private Lirnited
Mr. Nitin Agrawal

Compensation to Key Management Personncl (llel'er note below)
Remuneration

Mr. Ganesh Sabat
Mr. Bhargav Kotadia
Mr. Jose Calle
Mr. Nitin Agrawal
Mr. Alnit Khandclia
Ms. Deepshikha Singhal

Sitting Fces

Mr. Debasis l,anigrahi
Mrs. Sonalika Dhar

Share based paylnent expenses

Advancc given and repaid during the vear
Mr. Ganesh Sabat

Samara Capital Markets Iloldings Lilnited
NHPITA Sparkle Holdings B.V.

Shrcc Hari'l'rust

Sahqjanand'l'echnologies l']rivate Lirnited
Sahrlanand I-ilb Sciences Prrvate Lirmitcd

SMT ESOP'Irust

Inllnnium Ll-C

Mr. Dhirajlal Kotadia (Chainran upto 31 March, 2025 and Chairrnan Emeritus and Non - Excoutivc
Director rv.c.f' 0l April, 2025)

Mr. Bhargav Kotadia (Managing Director upto 3l March, 2025 and Managrng Dircctor and Chiel
Executive Office iv.e.1. 0 l April, 2025)

Mr. Jose Callc (Director upto 3 I March, 2025 and Direclor and Chairnan rv. e.f 0l April, 2025 )
Mr. Abhishek Kabra (Non Executive Direclor)
Ms. Sonalika Dhar (lndependent Director w.e.t. 30 .lune, 2023)

Mr. Debasis l)anigrahi (lndependent Dircctor rv.c.f22 Septernber, 2023)
Ms. Vyanjana Kiritbhai Pandya (Non - excccutive Director upto 3 I May, 2024)

Mr. I larivadan Jagadish Pandya (Non - excecutive Direcbr)
Mr. Ganesh Sabat (Executive Director and Chief Executivc Olllcer upto 3 I March, 2025 and Non -

Exccutive Director rv.e.h t)l April,2025)
Mr. Gautaur Gode (Non - cxcecutive Director rv.e.f24 August, 2022 )
Mr. Nitrn Agrawal (Chief Financial C)lficer upto 3 J .lanuary, 2024)
Mr. Arnit l(unrar Khandelia (Chief lrinancial OII'icer rv.e.1. 0l February,2024)
Mrs. Deepshikha Singhal (Company Secretary tv.e.1. 20 June, 2023 and Conrpany Secrctary and
Compliance Oflicer w.e.f. l6 April, 2025)

(Rs. in lacs)

lor the year ended

3l March,2025
l.or thc Year cntlcd
3l March,2024

374.66

J.J I

0.77

219.54

167.79

24.0s

0.38

4.25

11.01

2._48

1,933.58

178.33

75.22

178.01

38.30

1.85

1.60

17.t7

1t9.47

4.5 t

0.59

168.92

45.34

4.94

10.83

12.66

I 1.35

068

5.20

s12.52
'176.12

80.12

240.35

20.94

24.06

1.05

2.60

92.01

100.00

*



Sahajanand Medical'l'echnologies Linrited
Notes forming part of the Consolidatcd linancial Statemcnts for the year endcd 3l March, 2025

Footnots:

basis for the group as a rvhole.

Note 33: Related party disclosul'cs

(Rs, in lacs)
(c) Closing Balances :

Trade Payablc

lnfinniurn LLC

Capital Advances
Sahajanand Tcchnologics Privatc Lirnited

0ther Rcccivables
Sahajanand 'l echnologies Private Lirnited
Sahajanand Life Sciences Private l-irnited

Other Payables
Mr. Ganesh Sabat

Ms. Deepshikha Singhal

I)mployee rclated liabilities
Remuncratron payable to Key Managerial Personnel
Gancsh l)rasad Sabat

Bhargav Kotadia
Amit Kurnar Khandclia
Decpshikha Singhal

Security Deposit (iivcn
Mr. I)hirailal Kotadia

As at 31 March, 2024 As at 3l IVIarch, 2023

168.45

1 75.1 0

12.94

0,04

444.92

8.38

6.52

L00

15.00

4.80

1.29

0.36

15.00

Footnote: All the above related pafty lransactions are at an arrn's Jength and in the ordinary coursc ofbusiness ofthe Croup.

Note 34: Scgment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a rranner consistent with the internal reporting proi,ided to the ChiefOperating Decision Maker (CODM).

maker.

Prima[y segmcnt:

deciding horv to allooate resources and assessing perlonnance. The Group has a single rcportable business segment i e. 'Cardiovascular Devices'.

Secondary scgments (By geography):

Ils. in
Particulars For the year en<led 3l March,2025

India Outside India Total
Revenue fiorr location of custorners

3arrying amount of segment non-current assets +
33,065.77

22,909 17

6S4r) ts
9.257.58

1.02,487 92

32,t66.75
Particulars For the vear ended 31 March.2024

India Outside India l'otal
Revenue frorn looation of customers
Sarrying arnounl of segment non-current assels *

32, I 3 1.82

24.143.99

5 8,02{i.54

8,1t67.35

90,1 60 36

33.01 Lt4
No single custotrcr contributes morc than l0olo or more of the Group's total revenuc fbr the year ended : t Vorit , ZOZ ana : t lt4arct,, Ztr:S* Non-current assets cxolude linancial assets, income tax assets and def'erred tax assets.

I,'or the year cnded 3l lior the year endcd
March,2025 3l March,2024

'I'he reconciliation of rcvenue between contract price anrl recogniserl in thc Consolidaterl Staternent of Profit antl Loss:

Gross Rcvcnue

L,ess:

Discotrnt

97,940.76

( s,265.00)
l5Return (3,366.

Nct Revenuc \O\.4gi,.n 90,160.36

@-



Sahajanand Medical Technologies Limitcd
Notes forming part ofthe Consolidated [.inancial Stfltenrents for thc ycar cndc(l 3l M{rch, 2025

Note 35: Financial Risk Management and Capital Management
Financial risk manaqement obiectivcs and policies

-protect the Group's financial results and position fiom financial risks
{naintain lnarket risks witlrin acceptable parameters, \vhile optirnising retutls: and
-protect the Group's financial investtnents, wlrile rnaxiurising retrnls.

major areas of activity.

irnpair investor confi dence.

Group and I'unding arrangernenl lrorn the investilg panners.

required) and any excess is invested ir liquid fixed deposits while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its Iabilities.

Exposure to liquidity risk

impact of netting agr eements.

Maturitv patlerns of other financial [iabilities

(B) MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a custorner or counler-parly lhils to rrreel its contract[al obligations.

Trade receivables:

Othcr financial assets:

rating and past experience. Crcdit lirnits and corcentratiou of exposures are activcly ntonitu ccl by the Croup's Firance departuent.

(C) MANAGEMENT OI- MARKET RISK
'fhe Group's size and operations result in it being exposed to the lbllowing rnarket risks that arise tiom its usc of finarrcial ilstrunrents:
. lroreign cunency risk.
. price risk; and

within acceptable parameters. while optirnising returls. 'l he Group's exposure to, and nlanagenlent of, thcsc risks is explained below.

Payable related to CapitaJ goods

Financial Liabilily ((lunent and Non-Cun.ent)
Short-'[enn Borowings
I-ongil'errn Bonorvings
l-ease Liabilities

I 0,397.84
33 1.30

5,934.u t

I 6,845.83

2.066.IJ8

Financial Liability (Cunent and Non-Curent)
.Tenn Bonowings

8.2 t4.0s
190.03

4.245.t6
11,7v).20
2.7 t7 .78

879.68



Sahajanand Medical Technologies Limited
Notes forming part ofthe Consolidated Financial Statcmcnts for the ycar cntlerl 3l March, 2025
(l) Foreign Currency Risk:

EURO.

and the satne has been netted offagainst the EtlR and USD exposure ofTrade rccciavbles, respectively.

Unhedged foreiqn currencv exposure:

of
{s at 3l March,2025 Amount in USt)

(in lacs)
Anlornt in

Rupees (in lacs)
r\mount in l!tlR

(in lacs)
Anlount in

Rupces (in lacs)
Irade Payables

i3orrowiugs
lapital Creditors
l-oans given

)ther payables

Jther Rcceivables

Irade Receivables

(3 3.61

(3.16',

0. l0
(24.47

24.80
{i5.60

(2,878.81 )

( 270.80 )

8.56

( 2.095.94 )

2. I 23.96
7 .33t .43

( r e.ss)
(9.01 )
(0.r2)

( 3 2.1t6 )

'7 .72

t2.09

( 1,809.04)
(834.3s )

(11.il)

(3,04t.51)
7 14.98

r .l 19. r0

{s at 3l March, 2024 Amount in (lSI) Amount in
rrrrees Iin lecs\

Amount in IiUlt Anlount in
Rur)ccs I in lrrs)

Trade Payables

Bonowings
Capital Creditors
Trade Receivables

Other payables

Other Receivables

l.oans given

(s0 7_2"

90.t6
13.34

t3.37
0. t0

(4.224.60)

7.509.73
I.I t0.99
1,1 t3.65

8.33

(22.67 )
( r0.97)

(0.s I )
23.81

s4.98

( 2,044.50)
(989.54)

(46.29)
2.t41 .35

4.95{t.44

Foohrote; The fi gures are before elirnilation of Intla-group l'ransactions.

Foreisn Currency Risk Scnsitivitv
A change of I % in foreign cunency rvould have fbllowing irnpacl on Profit before lax:

tn
3l March,2025 3l March, 2024

I ol, Incrcase l'2, l)ecrcasc l'2, Increasc l'2, I)ecrcasc
tJnited States Dollar (tiSD)
Euro (EUII)
lncrease / (decrease) in l,rofit

42.1 8

138 (r2l
(42. I 8)

1R 6?
55.t8
40.2s

(5s. I 8t
t40 )51

3.s6 (3.561 95.43 (95.43)

(ll) lntcrest Rate Risk:

since neither tlte canying arnount nor tlrc future cash Ilow will flrrctuate because of a change in nlarkel intcrest rates.

Int€rest rate sensitivity - variable rate borrolvings

lmpact on Loss Ycar endcd
3l March,2025

Ycar cntled
3l March.2024

Irterest Rate itlcrease bv 5obns+ (9ri.44 (86 6e)
Interest Rate decrease bv 50ltos* 98.44 86.69

ffi

e,r



Sahajanand Medical'l'echnologies Limited
Notcs fornring part of the Consolidated !'inancial Statemcnts for thc year enderl 3l March, 2025
(lll) t'ricing Risk:
There is no material ilnpact ofpricing Iisk on tlre financial statenlents and the operalions ofthe grorD.
Financial Instrument bv categorv

anlount Financial Assets and t.iabilities is a reasonable approxinlation of fair value.

Thc following rnethods and assunrptions were used to estintatc lhe fair valucs:

tllese iilslrulneilts.

inclusion ofturobservable inputs including counter party credit risk.

(D) FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
had access to the facililies at the end ol the ln

Particulars As at
3l Mrr.h rfirs

As at
3l March- 202f

Floating rate loan/Fixed rate loan
Expiring within one year
Expiling beyond oue vear

17.119.57

14.201 .46

2,9t8.t I

5,208.98

4.250.6ti
958.30

(E) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

oftlre Group's capital rnanagernent is to maxilnize the shareholder value.

divided by total capilal plus net debt. 'l'he Group includes witlrin net debt. borr.orvings Iess cash and cash equivalenls.

Particulars As at 3l Mnrch, 2025 As at 3l March. 202,1
Borrorvings
[-ess: Cash and Cash Equivalent
l-ess: DSRA deposit

))JO\?r
| 0.052.02

855.00

17.526.96

7. I 66.80
855.00

Nct debt (A) I t.588.70 9.505.16

Equity Share Capital
Other Hquity attributable to owners ofthe Cr

976.00
55,596.44

97 4.50
53.033.93

Total capital (B) s6,s72.43 54.008.43

Capital and net debt (C) 68,1 6t.1 3 63-51 3.59
Gearing Ratio (A/C) l7'Y 15,'t

Investment
'I rade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
I-oans

Others financial asset

Other Bank Balances

492._30

329.21

2,344.'t7

492.30

26.34',7.63

l 0,052.02
4t3.79

2,561.34

I 0.397.84
18,912.71

843.72

I 0,397.84
22.495.'t I

2,8'12.42

Particulars As at 3l March, 2024

'llade receivables

Cash and caslr equivalents
Loans

Others financial asset

Other Bank Balances

Trade payables

Bonorvings
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Non-C Currcnt 'I'otal

4(r.00

2,051.51

2t,5t6.83
7, I 66.80

87.69
341.13

186.17

2 1,5 I (r.83

7, r 66.80
133.69

2.392.70
186.t7

2.097.57 29,298.62 3t,396.r9

3,009.98
t,722.89

677 .8t

8,2 t4.05
14,516.98

805.02
4.435.19

8,2 14.05

t'7,526.96
) s)? ol
5.1 l3 00

5.41 0.68 27,971.24 33.38t.92

Financial Assets at Fair Valuc throush P&L
Forward contract receivable - (Level 2 1 63.20 63.20

63.20 63.20



Sahajanand Medical Technologies Limited
Notes f<rrming part of the Consolidatcd Iiinancial Statcments for thc 5,car cndcd 31 March,2025

Note 36: Employce bcnefits
In accordance with Ind AS - l9 Ernployee Benellts. specificd Lrnder Scctron 133 o1'the Conrpanies Act,20l3 the lirllowing disclosures are madc:

contributions payable to these plans by the Group are at rates specified in the rules o1'the schenres.

36.2 Defined benefit olans:

scrvice, the gratuity is payahle irrcspective ofvesting.

Interest risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will incrcase the plan liatrility.
Longevity risk

ernpJoynlent. An increase in the lile expectancy o1'the plan participants rvilt increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk

participants wjll increasc the plan's liability.

Move ment in defined bcnefits obligations (Rs. in lacs)

Particulars For the Year ended 3l For the Year ended
March, 2025 3l March, 2025

Opening dcfined be nefit liability
Ctrrrent service cost
Interest on net defined benefit liability
Actuarial loss arising fronr change in tinanoial assLlmptions
Actuarial Gain arising from change in dernographic assurnptiotrs
Actuarial loss arisirrg on account ofexpcrience adjustment
Foreign Currency Translation Diff'erence
Benetits Paid
Liability on intergroup transf'er

Closing defined benefit liability

1,6-54 84

250 08

I t3.3l
685 97
( 17.39)

1.46

(4.tr9)

(67. l 5)

57 05

1 .360 58

174.82

93 65

2 I 9.84
(rtt.60)

9.76
( 3.(r5)

( l 8l .06)

2,673.28

Move ment in fair value plan assets (lls. in lucs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 3l For the Year ended

March,2025 3l March, 2025

Opening fair value of plan assets

Employer contributions
h]terest on plan assets

Assets transl'erred

Actual rcturn on plan assets less interest on plan assets
Benefits Paid
Liability on intergroup transltr
Closing fair value of plan assets

1,670.21

238.11

r14.9r
42 21

(4.31)
(63 s1)
14 85

I .444.62
314.48

r03 90

(r 1 73)
( 181.0(r)

2,012.53 1,670.21

Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in balance shect: (Rs. in lacs)

Particulars Iror the Ycar cndctl I.'or the Ycar cndetl
3l March,2025 3l March,2024

Present valuc off'unded defined beneflt obligation
Fair value ol'plan assets

Net (Liability)/Asset arising from defined benefit obligation

(2,613.28)
2.012.53

( r.654 84)
1.670.21

(660.7s) 15.37

and loss

Particulars

Rs. in lacs
For the Yeal ended
3l March, 2025

For thc Year ended
3l iVlarch,2024

Currcnt scrvice cost
lnterest on net defined bencfit liability
'lbtal rccognised in the statcment of profit antl loss

250.08
(l 60)

1t 4.82
(10 34)

248.48 164.48

Anrounts rccognised in other Conrplehcnsive Inconrc for the year: (Rs. in lacs)

Particulars !'or thc Ycar cnded lror thc'l,ear cnded
3l March,2025 3l March. 2024

Actuarial loss arising liotn change in I'inancial assutnptiolls
ActLrarial Gain arising tiorn charrge in dernographic assurnptions
Actuarial loss arising on accoLutt o1'experience adjustnrcnt
Actual rcturn on plan assets less irrtcrest on plan assets
'fotal recognised in C)thcr Comprehensivc Income

685.97
( 1 7.3e)

|.46
4.31

219.84
(ltt.(r0)

926
I l.7l

674.35 222.23



Sahajanand Medical Technologies Limited
Notes lbrming part of the Consolitlatcd Financial Stateruents for thc year cntled 3l March,2025

Note 36: Iimployee bencfits

The principal assumptions used for the purposes ofthc actuarial valuations arc as follorys.

(A) India
Discourlt rate

Salary escalation

Attrition rate

(B) Outsidc India
Discount rate

Salary escalatiou
Attrition rate

Year endcd 31 March, Ycar cndcd 3l
2025 N,larch,2024

6.90%
I100%

5%-7%

2.35%
9.0001,

22.001A

7 .2Yo-7.23o/,

7%-10%

5%-7%

3.00%
9.00%

22.76%

employmcnt lnarkets.

Se nsitivity Analysis

(lls. in lacs)

particulars As at 3t IVIarch, 2025 As at 3l March, 2024
Decrcase Increasc Decrcase lncrcasc

Change in ratc of discor-u'ttilrg (delta eltbot of +l 0.5%)
Change in ratc of salary increase (delta effe ct 01'+/- 0.5yo)

29s.82 (102 38)
(24.83 ) 182.99

t55 16

(3 e.3s )

(7r 78)

1 13.33

Expectcd maturity anarysis of the defined bcnefit prans in future yca 
,,ar. ,n ,n..,

Particulars As at 3l Malch, 2025 As at 3l March,
2024

For I st year (next annual rcporting year)
Between2to5years
Between6to9years

133 4s

241.54

568.6 |

83.48

196.08

270.s6

12.778 07For I Oth year and beyond 20.873.78
'l'otal expccted payments 21,817.38 13,328.19

Weighted average duration of the defined bencfit plan:

As at 3l lVlarch, 2025 As at 3l Nlarch,
2024

Wr:ightcd averagc duration 01'the detincd benefit plan (in ycars) 15.58 14.34

ffi*s
WJ



Sahnjanmd Medlcal Technologl€i Llmltcd

Notes forming part ofthe Consolidated Financial Ststements for the year ended 3l March, 2025

Notc 37: Emplole Stmk Option Plnn, 202 I
A. Descrlption of !hrrc.b&scd pNlmcnt srrsngemcntr
sMT EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 2021 C.ESOP 2021')

B. Informdlon lo r$psaofOplloni granted underthc crcup'! Emplol.cc Slock OItlon Schcmcs

'q)l Il
20% trllcr I lrflr liun date oI (imnt of such OplioN or imrcdiatc\' on Ncurencc ol spccitic.l c!eal#, Nhichclcr is lal.r
20e,crch lirl lcil'sslilrlril8 lionr I v..rrll.rst)ceillcdc\cnlij

2: I tclr liotr) lhudillco, thc (;rrnt o, o|lion.

160,u)0 shocs irsusl in Juh. 2024 ljur I'(k)l I sirh the helur lesrior schedulc
-3 2.{)m opliuN lbm I t'e ilr lion dtrlc of (;rnnt oI such Optiqrs

2,0([) opli(n$ encl on I April. 202(,, I Alrril. 2027. I April. 2028. I April, 2029

20% rllcr I lcflr,ion dtrls oIGlrnl oIsuoh Options or innredialc\'oD Ncutnncc ot specilicd crcll#, shiohcrer is lulcr
20% c{oh lbr4 \'cnri st0flilg liom I wff trllcrspsilicd eycntr.

2: I Filr lilrD thcd0tc olthc Orrnr ol oplil)n

shrrcs issrcd trr.ruh. 202t llonr l\r)l I $ ill) lhc bclr\ \ cshs sehedulc
12.0(X) opliuN ljonr I \enr lioilr d.lc ol (irnr ol such Otxxnrs

oflxrsrxch on I Atril.:026. I AIDI.1017. I April.1028. I April.2o2u

ctrIio\ce coilr)cilsrltr,r c\isl h.s becn eil.uhlcd u:ir)t thc discouDtod crsh

rrcrrgcc\crciscfriccsrnd scrghlod il\crntd lirir \rltrNol'
trhosc c\crrisc fricc cirhcr cqurN or o\eecds or is lcss rhn

niilrkcl I)ricc ollhc sk)ck

htcd ri\!r0gc e\crcisc pricc per Oili(rr:
l: Ils.97.(,0

Grrni dalc: l0
Norrtrrhcr.2l12l rnd
2l Dc$nrher.202l

]] spc.ilicd c\ctrl rs lhc occuncncc ol cilhlr lirnd rrisxrS or conduclint xn Inilmt I\rl)lic Ollir ing

C.Acliritritr{hcotrti('nsoulitandingundcrlhccrnpl('rectsstorkolli0nschcnrorrtasfotktr!I

For lhc \crrcndcd 3l Nlhrrh. 2(l2s
Pool 2

No. ofOpli(,ns Woightod ar(rrsr
t:\ercisc Prices (Ils,)

No. ofOpll.,ns Wcighlcd n\eragr
I\crcisc Pri$\ (Rs.)

.)iliurs oulstilndr! nl llc bcurtrnn! ol lho \crr lrx)
pliurs arilnlcd during lhc \err 1.60.0(l

.\nn,rs c\crciicd durnr! rhc \crr ([x) lrx)

.)pln,r lnrlaitcd dudr! lhc rcilr
plirrs hpscd duritr! lhc lcil'

lsj{llrc.nd o, the lerr
,nirr, \( rd iilJ (\(rLhilil(.il rltr.d.,l ,r'lh( \(. Iil)

For lhc \rrr(ndcd 3l Nrrch. 2021

Pool 2

No. ofOIln'ns wcrghfud r\crngc
lrcrcisr l'ric(s (Rs.)

No. ofOplhnr lvtishlcd a\0rrg(
E\cr(kc Pricos (Rs,)

rB r( thc lrcSirnrirg ol-thc \cilr
)rnkrts !r arrcd (iur iil! lh. \..r
pli(ils c\.rcrscd durnq th. \.ilr

llls!litrliilcd (lurms rh. \drr
)triurs Iilrscd duriuq lhc \crr 1.62.00

! ill lhr rn,l ,il rh! \(.tr 1(!.17.0(x)
{i.{ir \rn(J nilJ L\1r.1 :rl,tr xl rhc (nJ ill'ilr' \{..1 6,50.800



Sah:\innand Mcdio.l Tc.hnotr)sics Limir.d

Notes forming part ofthe Consolidaled I.inancial Staternents for thc year ctrded Jl Ntarch. 2025

24 lrcbruilr.2025

Ii\crcis. l)cr ul ol i (|rre) \errs Illrn thc drlc ol l|c VciltrrS ot su.h Olliu)s.

1i\crcisc l'crn)d 01 i (lji\c) \cil s IloDr th. d.lc ol lhc Vlrnrp ol'str.h Oltiurr

r Bhcl(-Scholcs ilIodrl rnd thc significrtrt nssunrt)ti,ini mnd. in lhis

Vc{lrs Dnl(
lf N6r.mh.r.2lr22 l)7 F.hrunrr,2{121 (17 ts.1).unr\.21r25
1J Norcilnr.r.2021 No\.rnh.r l0ll I J No\ onrhcr, l(rl I li Norcnrhcr.2l)2 I No\.Dhcr. :ol l

j
i\Ncled lilc (Ycilr s) 35( 51 7.5r

ltJo lo 16 19. t9
f/"t

llxJ 2 1 (() N/l N// N/
ik)uk l'jdoc (lts ) l1l 80 111 A( 231

ling l)nlu
,2il25 0l lDril.2l)26 ()l ADril,202? 0

rilnl 1)rlc l().ruh. lolJ l9.luh,2o2J l1).trh. 202{ l9.luh 20ll
isk lilc rrlc (%) 6 819

51
\Ncled Vohllilr (91) 25 9l,X 21 ttil
\pccl.d I)trjdend \iekl (%,)

llx, I 91
llr)l 2 NA NA N 

(Ek I']rico (l{s.) ili 57 r2i 57 325 i7



Sahajanand Medical'f ochnologies Limitcd
NotcsformingpartoftheConsolidatedFinancialStaternentslbrtheyearendcdJl March,2025

Note 38: Disclosures of lntcrcst in other entities

Disclosure of Material non-oontrolling interests ('NCI')

is set out below. The al'llounts disclosed are be lbre inter-cornpany eliminations.

Rs. in
Summarised Balance Shect As at 3l March,2025 As at 3l March,2024

Current Assets

Current Liabilities
Net Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Non-Current Liabilities
Net Non-Current Assets

Net Assets

Accumulated NCI

10,631.68

(3. l r4.78)
7,516,90

824.02
( r00.s6)
723.46

8,210.J6
2.060.09

I 1,565.2 |

(3,279.42)

8,28s.79

r,309.21

(200.44)

1,108.77

9,394.56
2.3tR.64

Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss For the year ended 31

March.2025
For the year ended 31

March,2024

Revenue

Profit for the year

Other Cornprehensive htcome
'l'otal Comprehcnsive lncome
'Iotal Comprehensive Income allocated to NCI*

12,05 l 0(r

t.347 42

1,341.42

336,86

13,963.92

1,754.34

1,754.34

43tt.59
*above excludes the exchange difference ou translation oflbreign operations

Summarised Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended 3l
March,2025

For thc year cndcd 3l
March,2024

Cash Flows liom Operating Activities
Cash Flows Iiorn Irrvcstirrg Activities
Cash Flows fiorn Financing Activities
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & cash Equivalents

1.228.84

(s8 28)
(t .43'7 .7 6)

(267 -20\

r,820.n9
( l 10.671

(43 39)

1.666.83

The amounts disclosed arc before inler-oompany eliminalions.

Rs. in
Summarised Balance Sheet As at 3l March,2025 As at 31 March,2024

Currcrrt Assets

Current Liabilities
Nct (lurrcnt Assets

Non-Current Assets
Non-Current t-iabilities
Net Non-Culrcnt Assets

Nct Assets

Accumulated NCI

6,959.82
(s.-513s.47)

r,374.35

3.244 93

(734 e9)
2,509.94

3,884.29

127.27

5 ,t9 t ,32

(3,991 .65)

l,lgg,67

3,165,93
( 1,86{t,59)

1,297.34

2,497.01

274.67

Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss For the year ended 31

March,2025
For the year ended 3l

March,2024

ltevenuc
Proflt lbr the year

Other Contprehensive Inootue
Total Comprehcnsivc lncomc
'['otal Colrprehensive Income allocated to NCI*

13,072.14

I .295.19

1,295.19
t42.47

9,421 .98

932.28

932.2t1
I02.5.5

Summarised Statement of Cash Flows l,'or the year ended 3l
lllarch, 2025

For the year ended 3l
March,2024

Cash Flows fiom Operating Activities
(-aslr Flows liorn lnvesting Activiries
Cash Flows liorn Financing Aotivities
Net Incrcase / (Decreasc) in Cash & cash Eouivalents

2,670.t3
( 17s.63)

(1.217.43)

1.271.07

1.575.89

(0.40)
(84e.e r )
725.5tt

*above excludes the exchangc dilference on translation offbretgn np.,ntir*

@q$
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Sahr.irnrnd Mcdical'I cchnologies Limilcd
Nolrs lbriling Dr( ofthc Coilsolidrtcd Finnncial Starcmcnrs tor thc lcrrcndcd 31 Mnrch,2{125

Notc ll): DiscLllu.cs Dulsunnl to Rulr I 1 of thc ComDrnics (Audir rnd Auditors) Rutes. 2{[]

(b)provrdcan\guarrtrlcc.sccilrjl!orlhclikcloorotrbchallolthcUlli0nlctscncficiancs.

(FilndingPafl\)silhlhcriltdcrilailding($hctltcrrccordcdin$rilingorolhcNisc)lhtuhcConlprn\shall:

(b) proridc a n\ 8ua ra iltcc. sccurilr or I hc likc lo or otr bcha I f of lhc U tl i uHlc Dcncficiarics.

Drl( of h{n rccchcd bt thc Conprnt from lunding Pr(r !'unding nrrrilgcmcnt
Funding PilrtJ

Dnlc of furlher rdriln(cd bl
CoilDnnJ (ltrlcrmcdinr)
ComDrnI) b Ultimrrr

BrncficirrJ

'lltc 0l'

28 Augusl.202l Loan l.t28.ll
rccnnolog)

Dc\clopilrcnt
2f) No\cnrbcr. 202{ Lorn ghcn 11

I Jnnurn.2025
l0 Fcbrun^'.2025 Lorn 1.166.95

l cchnolog\
Dc\clopnrcnl

l9 Marcl. 2025

l8 8!

Dnlc of l)nn rcccircd bt thc ComDanJ from Funding prrlt Futrding nrrrngcncilt Namr of the
l'undinI PrrlI

Dnlc ol fu(hrr ildrancrd bl
(hmt)rilr (ltrlcrntodirrr
ComDrnt) lo tJllimtrtr

'lrpc of
In1'crlilrcnt

N[, N]L

Footnote:

Note {lr Dislilurc Du6!dt to Ind AS ll6
Amounls rccogniscd in Balancc Shcct

Jl Mrrch.2l)2s ll M,r.h. rllrl
l,crsc Lixbililics
Cuocnl 8lt 72 805.02

Tolal 2-A77.ll
Morcmcnl of Rishtof-Usc ilrets
Dclrils ofcnrning anlouril of ri8hl-of{rse ilssc(s aril ntovenrcnl d[riilg lhc \'$r is discloscd under Notc rB.
Morcmcnl in l{asc Litbilitics

31 NInr(h.2(l2l

Addilion durins rcar
fin,rncc Cosl

Dclclion
Modificrlioil
E\chrilAc diIIcrcilcc
l-casc Liilbili\' I)r\ ilrcnrs

2;27 9t
1.2 I 8.(r5

tlt ]1
( l6(,.52

J08
5t 08

2.0s0.3?
1.5t3.39

l+t.61
(8 l.+6

31 8t

losing Bnlancc 2.412_t3

Amounls rccognised iil thc Consotidxtcd Stntemcnt of profit rnd Loss

Nolc 3l [furch.2025 JI fiIilrrh.2(l2l
)cprccialioil chilrec of rirhfol-rrsc acscls 901.98
ilcrc{ c\pctrsc {irchldcd in financc costs) 26 )) trt 6t

l\pc0sc rclalilA lo ShorFtcrnl lcascs 661.
rDcnsc rclillins lo Lo\- \aluc lcilscs 28 I {.1

82

lhan I \crr ntrd nol lalcr lhin 5 \'cars

Nolc 12 r Disck,surc pur.sunnl to scction 186 ofthc ConDanics Acl! 2t)lJ

Notc lJ : Disclosurrs N t)cr Schcdulc ttI to thc ComDnnics A(.2i,13
i llcCrotrphrs norclalionsltiprnd lrilnsrclioils\ilh stnrck ofTcolnpililics.

Nnile of lhc rntilJ lll April,202J
t-orns giren rluring lhc l,orn Rcpxtflrcnt

(luring thc Jona
l.0nn conrc'1cd b Equit)

Foreign
Currcnc) 3l Mnrch,2(l2J

;c\rsadnil Lifclinc I\1. Ltd
iNlT Cilrdio\ilscular P\r l-rd

l0 50 i0.50

nrl

Nnmo of trnlilJ PurDore ot ulilizntion of lorn
gircn lo lhc cnlitics Rrlc 0, lnicrcs RcDrtrncnl Tcrns

Sc\rsodan Lifcll)c Pyr Lld 3nsincss Loan 6 25y,
Ihc rcpa\nrcnl ollhc ton,r sitl slrrl irililrcdidch \irh a ur;riu,uu,.cpuuncnin-tslls Iu-i

iMl CrrdiovasctrhrP\I Lld
)roducl Enhilnccnrcnl
:lonnncrcirlisiltioil ol TAV
rndcr llrc GAl l Proicc(

6 88'2, I o bc rcprid n ithir r pcriod ol j \s6 froilr rhc drtc ofdisbnrscnrcnr

iMT CNrdio\ascular hl Lld icltiDg uD of nratrnfitclurjn!
,Nill

Rcpx\xblc \ithin 3 rcrrs fronr dalc ofdisburscilrcrl. l.his lontr nns tull. ,cprnvco,ncnci-ii
cquit\ dtrring lhc \car

?ed



S{ha.irn{nd Nlcdicrl Tcchil0logjcs Liililrd
Nolcs forming piln of lhc Consolidntcd Financirl Slrtemcnls for thc )crl cndcd Jl Milrch, 2tt25

Nole lJ i Rrtio Aor!\ris (Rs. ID h(s othcr thril rrtior)

Ar al Jl l\tarrh.2{125 As rl Jl Nlrrrh. 2{l2r
Cnrrcnt Asscts

Cnrrcfll l-iilbililics
Rxti6

70 795 ir6

t3.l:16 26

Itt

olhcr rnrorli/rlioils + ltxcrcst c\pcnsc+ olhcr rdiuslNcnts likc loss o[ propot l]. planl ind cqniptncnl clc

dir ided b) Alrrrgc tltuilt nltribllablr b os ncr.s ot lhc (hmprtr]

Rcr$n for chnnsc morc thrn 25%:
This itrcrcrscd is nuinl\'duc to incrcascd profitabitjlt dnring thc \car

Ar nl Jl Mn(h.2{125 As st Jl [trr.h- 2{r2J

Nel Profil/ (loss) nner ta\ rttribu(ablc lo o$nc6 oflhc Compan\

A\crrgc Eqilil\ dlribiltablc lo o$ ilcrs of lltc Coillprnv
Ra(io

2.015 8l

55.290 lJ

(1.276.5r)

5+.670.?5

Z, Chrncc [i0rn Dr.\ ioils \car -2aant

As nl 3l Mrtrh.2(l2t

Thc ircrcnsc is rrniilh duc lo iilcrcnscd profitabililr dnring lhc \crr

I,rolll / (Loss) rllcr la\ (A)
rncc cons (B)

Lcss: IrorciAn Curcncl liiilslalion Iicscn.c (c)

6.151 l 9

5r.0{6 59

l.l2i 65

h) Rcttrrn on IDrcslmcnt = In.omc fron inrcstncnl dir.idcd t,r lhc rklsin! brtrncc of lhc h\rsrn.nt'rhisrrlioisnolrpplicabicsiflcclhcGronpdoestrortravcnn\projccls/itr\cslilrcnrsolhcrttrrncnrrcrlopcillions.

Notc 15 : ImDrcl on Codc on Socirl Sccuritt,, 2t)2t)

?</-



Sahajanand Medical Technologies Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March, 2025

Note 46 : Reclassification note

Previous period's figures have been le-grouped / re-classified. 10 thc extent neoessary. to conf'orm to cllrrenl periocl's classificalions.
All the numbers have been rounded ofTto nearcst lacs.

For and on behalfofthe Board of Directors
Sahajanand Medical 1-echnologies l.irnited

Managing Director and

Chief Executive Officer
DIN :06575042

Placc: Murrbai
I)ate: 29 May,2025

DIN : 079834{t0

Placc: Mumbai

Date:29 May,2025

(Maqtd,^J&
Amil Kurnal Khandelia

Chie[' I"inancial OI'l rcer'

Place: Mumbai

Date'.29 May.2025

lepitritna Singhal

Company Sccrctary ancl

Con.rpliance O1'llcer

I)lacc : Mumbai

DaIe: 29 Ma5,,2025

Ganesh *asr6.bab)
Non-Dxecutivc I)i rcctur


